Auburn Lewiston Municipal Airport - Board of Directors - Meeting Agenda
November 19", 2025 5:30 P.M.
Administrative Conference Room 80 Airport Drive, Auburn, Maine

Call to Order

Workshop - Airport Master Plan Update and Capital Improvement Plan Presentation

VI.

VII.

VIIL.

Consent Items

Minutes
1. September 10, 2025 Meeting

Financial Report — Treasurer
1. FY 2026 YTD Revenue/Expense and Balance Sheet
2. Fuel Sales Year over Year Comparisons

Communications —

Public Comment — Members of the public are invited to speak to the Board of Directors about any
issue directly related to airport business.

Old Business —
1. FY2024 Audit and Financial Statements (as tabled from the September 10", 2025 meeting)

New Business —
1. Order adopting a Board of Directors Meeting Public Comment Policy
2. Order authorizing the execution of a waiver of right of first refusal for 80 Kittyhawk Avenue
3. Order authorizing the Airport Director to negotiate and execute an operating rights
agreement with Tailfin Aviation LLC for Flight Training and Aircraft Rental FBOs, and giving
consent to a sublease from Dirigo Aerospace Solutions in Hangar #2.

Reports
1. Airport Director Report
a. Construction Project Updates
2. Board of Directors Reports

Executive Sessions —
1. Pursuant to MRSA 405(6) c — Real estate negotiations (Airport Property Leases)

Adjournment (Next Board Meeting, January 14, 2025)

Executive Session: On occasion, the Board of Directors discusses matters which are required or allowed by State law to
be considered in executive session. Executive sessions are not open to the public. The matters that are discussed in

Page 1 of 2



executive session are required to be kept confidential until they become a matter of public discussion. In order to go
into executive session, a Director must make a motion in public. The motion must be recorded. An executive session is
not required to be scheduled in advance as an agenda item, although when it is known at the time that the agenda is
finalized, it will be listed on the agenda. The only topics which may be discussed in executive session are those that fall
within one of the categories set forth in Title 1 M.R.S.A. Section 405(6). Those applicable are:

A. Discussion of personnel issues

C. Discussion or consideration of the condition, acquisition or the use of real or personal property permanently attached
to real property or interests therein or disposition of publicly held property or economic development only if premature
disclosures of the information would prejudice the competitive or bargaining position of the body or agency

D. Labor contracts

E. Contemplated litigation

Page 2 of 2



Auburn Lewiston Municipal Airport - Board of Directors - Meeting Minutes
September 10, 2025 5:30 P.M.
Administrative Conference Room 80 Airport Drive, Auburn, Maine

Call to Order at 5:30 PM
Present: M. Garside, W. Poulin, D. Chittim, L. Allen, T. Roy
Absent: P. Crowell, M. Blais, B. Weisner

VI.

VII.

VIIL.

Workshop
1. Presentation of the FY2024 Audit by RKO

Consent Items

Minutes — On a motion by D. Chittim and a second by M. Garside, both minutes were accepted by a
vote of 5-0. Clarification was made on the date of the July 9" meeting in the minutes.

1. July 9, 2025 Meeting

2. August 13, 2025 Special Meeting

Financial Report — Treasurer

1. Acceptance of the FY2024 Audit Submitted by RKO — On a motion by D. Chittim and a second by
M. Garside, the acceptance of the FY2024 audit was tabled to the November Board meeting.

2. FY 2026 YTD Revenue/Expense and Balance Sheet — On a motion by D. Chittim and a second by
M. Garside, the financial report was accepted and placed on file by a vote of 5-0.

3. Fuel Sales Year over Year Comparisons/Peak Season Comparisons

Communications —

Public Comment — Members of the public are invited to speak to the Board of Directors about any
issue directly related to airport business.

1. Note: Chair Allen requested that the draft public comment policy be brought to the November
meeting for Board review and possible action/adoption.

Old Business - None
New Business —
1. Order to Approve an Amendment to the City of Auburn/Airport MOU to Clarify Language on
Continuing Costs — On a motion by D. Chittim and a second by T. Roy, the order was approved 5-
0.
Reports

Adjournment (Next Board Meeting was confirmed to be November 19, 2025), adjourned at 7:09 PM

Page 1 of 1



CITY OF AUBURN
YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGET REPORT

FOR 2026 04

ACCOUNTS FOR: ORIGINAL TRANFRS/ REVISED AVAILABLE PCT

Airport Operations APPROP ADJSTMTS BUDGET YTD ACTUAL ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET USE/COL

9000 Airport Operations

9000 420035 Fees - Fuel Flowage -15,000 0 -15,000 -4,810.30 .00 -10,189.70 32.1%*
9000 420040 Fees - Landings -50,000 0 -50,000 -26,885.00 .00 -23,115.00 53.8%*
9000 429005 cChristian Hill Mate -100,000 0 -100,000 -30,169.45 .00 -69,830.55 30.2%*
9000 429025 Rental Fees -200,000 0 -200,000 -73,041.26 .00 -126,958.74 36.5%*
TOTAL Airport Operations -365,000 0 -365,000 -134,906.01 .00 -230,093.99 37.0%
9002 611000 Regular salaries 154,000 0 154,000 47,581.45 .00 106,418.55 30.9%
9002 613000 OT - Regular 10,000 0 10,000 933.70 .00 9,066.30 9.3%
9002 617020 Fringe Benefits 72,900 0 72,900 24,657.27 .00 48,242.73 33.8%
9002 617030 Professional Develo 16,000 0 16,000 2,925.26 .00 13,074.74 18.3%
9002 620000 Advertising 7,500 0 7,500 .00 .00 7,500.00 .0%
9002 628000 cContract Services 286,300 2,750 289,050 59,649.22 1,650.00 227,750.78  21.2%
9002 628016 Legal services 20,000 0 20,000 4,420.00 .00 15,580.00 22.1%
9002 628019 Building Repairs 52,500 0 52,500 2,747.31 .00 49,752.69 5.2%
9002 628020 Vehicle Repairs 25,000 0 25,000 800.26 .00 24,199.74 3.2%
9002 628021 Equipment Repairs 1,500 0 1,500 .00 .00 1,500.00 .0%
9002 628038 Repairs - Electrica 4,000 0 4,000 372.13 .00 3,627.87 9.3%
9002 628039 AIRFIELD MAINTENANC 39,500 16,084 55,584 129.34 16,084.34 39,370.66  29.2%
9002 628056 Life Flight Land Fu 12,000 0 12,000 .00 .00 12,000.00 .0%
9002 633000 oOffice supplies 2,500 0 2,500 442.62 .00 2,057.38 17.7%
9002 633030 Fuels and 0i1 for Vv 10,000 3,367 13,367 278.70 3,366.66 9,721.30 27.3%
9002 633040 sSnow and Ice Contro 20,000 0 20,000 33,333.55 .00 -13,333.55 166.7%*
9002 633041 Computer/office Mac 7,500 0 7,500 .00 .00 7,500.00 .0%
9002 633042 Pavement Maintenanc 39,000 0 39,000 20,929.89 .00 18,070.11 53.7%
9002 640000 Telephones/Cell sti 9,000 0 9,000 2,268.00 .00 6,732.00 25.2%
9002 641100 Utilities 43,500 0 43,500 3,723.68 .00 39,776.32 8.6%
9002 645000 Insurance Premiums 40,600 0 40,600 35,525.00 .00 5,075.00 87.5%
TOTAL Airport Operations 873,300 22,201 895,501 240,717.38 21,101.00 633,682.62 29.2%
9003 Airport Maintenance]
9003 628019 Building Maintenanc 0 500 500 .00 500.00 .00 100.0%
Report generated: 11/08/2025 12:15 Page 1

User: j.labonte
Program ID: glytdbud



— | : *% Munis
CITY OF AUBURN = :7 w%%elrp solution

YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGET REPORT

FOR 2026 04

ACCOUNTS FOR: ORIGINAL TRANFRS/ REVISED AVAILABLE PCT
Airport Operations APPROP ADJSTMTS BUDGET YTD ACTUAL  ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET USE/COL
9003 628020 Vehicle Maintenance 0 566 566 .00 565.61 .00 100.0%
9003 628039 Airfield Maintenanc 0 6,760 6,760 .00 6,759.69 .00 100.0%
9003 633042 Pavement Maintenanc 0 708 708 .00 707.56 .00 100.0%
TOTAL Airport Maintenance 0 8,533 8,533 .00 8,532.86 .00 100.0%
9005 Airport Other Income|
9005 401600 Municipal Subsidy -410,000 0 -410,000 -307,500.00 .00 -102,500.00  75.0%*
9005 420063 sService Fees -1,500 0 -1,500 -1,870.17 .00 370.17 124.7%
9005 422000 Investment Income -10,000 0 -10,000 -2,508.99 .00 -7,491.01 25.1%*
9005 429013 sale of Assets -10,000 0 -10,000 .00 .00 -10,000.00 . 0%*
9005 429019 FLIGHT SIMULATOR -2,000 0 -2,000 .00 .00 -2,000.00 . 0%*
TOTAL Airport Other Income -433,500 0 -433,500 -311,879.16 .00 -121,620.84 71.9%
9010 Airport-FBO|
9010 420035 Fees - Fuel and 0Oi -1,024,000 0 -1,024,000 -411,498.86 .00 -612,501.14  40.2%*
9010 420051 Tie Down/Hangar/Co -80,000 0 -80,000 -37,336.17 .00 -42,663.83  46.7%*
9010 420059 Fees-Catering 0 0 0 858.88 .00 -858.88 100.0%*
9010 420060 After Hour call out -20,000 0 -20,000 -18,605.28 .00 -1,394.72  93.0%*
9010 420061 Flight Line Service -7,000 0 -7,000 -2,735.00 .00 -4,265.00 39.1%*
9010 420064 Rental car -4,000 0 -4,000 -1,462.25 .00 -2,537.75 36.6%*
9010 420086 TRANSIENT TIE DOWN/ -15,000 0 -15,000 -2,190.00 .00 -12,810.00 14.6%*
9010 420911 Facility Fee -40,000 0 -40,000 -33,755.00 .00 -6,245.00 84.4%*
9010 633047 PROCESSING FEE 0 0 0 7,496.52 .00 -7,496.52 100.0%*
TOTAL Airport-FBO -1,190,000 0 -1,190,000 -499,227.16 .00 -690,772.84 42.0%
9015 Services (FBO) Expenses
9015 620000 Advertising 0 0 0 894.00 .00 -894.00 100.0%*
9015 628000 Prof/Contracted Ser 250,000 0 250,000 84,352.50 .00 165,647.50 33.7%
9015 628019 Building Maintenanc 18,500 1,049 19,549 354.80 1,049.00 18,145.20 7.2%
9015 628021 Plant Equipment 1,800 0 1,800 1,084.44 .00 715.56  60.2%
9015 628041 FBO HANGAR LOAN 60,000 0 60,000 .00 .00 60,000.00 .0%
9015 628044 Ground Support Equi 9,700 94 9,794 2,449.43 93.76 7,250.57 26.0%
Report generated: 11/08/2025 12:15 Page 2

User: j.labonte
Program ID: glytdbud



0
[ ) .‘. 1c
%o 0% munis
o c ‘a tyler erp solution

CITY OF AUBURN
YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGET REPORT

FOR 2026 04

ACCOUNTS FOR: ORIGINAL TRANFRS/ REVISED AVAILABLE PCT
Airport Operations APPROP ADJSTMTS BUDGET YTD ACTUAL ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET USE/COL
9015 628071 Fuel Flowage 0 0 0 4,492.50 .00 -4,492.50 100.0%*
9015 633000 office Supplies 1,000 0 1,000 1,163.37 .00 -163.37 116.3%*
9015 633030 Fuels & Oils 713,500 0 713,500 225,358.49 20,149.01 467,992.50 34.4%
9015 641100 utilities 60,700 0 60,700 10,636.04 .00 50,063.96 17.5%
TOTAL Services (FBO) Expenses 1,115,200 1,143 1,116,343 330,785.57 21,291.77 764,265.42 31.5%
TOTAL Airport Operations 0 31,877 31,877 -374,509.38 50,925.63 355,460.37-1015.1%
TOTAL REVENUES  -1,988,500 0 -1,988,500 -953,508.85 .00 -1,034,991.15
TOTAL EXPENSES 1,988,500 31,877 2,020,377 578,999.47 50,925.63  1,390,451.52
Report generated: 11/08/2025 12:15 Page 3

User: j.labonte
Program ID: glytdbud



4 ) -
=~ o o0 0, 5
CITY OF AUBURN e L5 munis
\ . 4/3 tyler erp solution
- el il
BALANCE SHEET FOR 2026 4
NET CHANGE ACCOUNT
FUND: 9000 Airport Operations FOR PERIOD BALANCE|
ASSETS
9000 011010 Airport Checking 67,160.01 535,983.22
9000 011030 Cash-pPetty Cash .00 700.00
9000 011140 Interest Receivable .00 .01
9000 011530 Accounts Receivable -264,574.40 35,689.55
9000 011545 Lease Receivable .00 1,507,728.58
9000 011900 INVENTORY FOR RESALE .00 97,961.21
9000 012110 Land .00 1,717,208.27
9000 012111 Land Improvements .00 28,975,024.00
9000 012112 construction In Progress .00 252,714.02
9000 012310 Buildings & Bldg Improvements .00 5,004,674.42
9000 012410 Machinery & Equipment .00 1,809,983.52
9000 012900 Accumulated Depreciation .00 -20,302,800.71
9000 013000 DEF OUTFLOW-NET PENSION .00 21,467.01
9000 016000 DUE TO / DUE FROM 127,171.93 -15,167,588.48
TOTAL ASSETS -70,242.46 4,488,744.62
LIABILITIES . ]
9000 024210 Accounts Payable .00 -11,000.00
9000 024230 Loan Payable-City of Auburn .00 -599,531.67
9000 024231 Loan Payable-City of Lewiston .00 -599,531.67
9000 024240 ACCRUED INTEREST .00 -20,426.13
9000 024611 Compensated Absences .00 -7,386.55
9000 024722 PAID FAMILY MEDICAL LEAVE -75.88 -276.47
9000 024734 ME State Retirement -1,362.42 -2,354.53
9000 024758 MMA Health Ins-Airport -756.64 -713.70
9000 024773 Vision -9.47 -4.77
9000 024829 DUE TO STATE - SALES TAX 4.40 -135.24
9000 025000 DEF INFLOW NET PENSION .00 -10,130.52
9000 026000 NET PENSION LIABILITY .00 -59,690.00
9000 029000 Deferred Inflow - Leases .00 -1,442,036.43
TOTAL LIABILITIES -2,200.01 -2,753,217.68
FUND BALANCE -
9000 037000 ctrl Total - Encumbrances -122,808.41 50,925.63
9000 037100 FB ASSIGNED CITY .00 -1,836,398.00
9000 037104 FB UNASSIGNED .0 475,380.44
9000 037201 CTRL TOTAL-BUD FB DESIGNATED 122,808.41 -50,925.63
9000 037301 ctr]l Total - Bud FB Undesignat .00 31,876.62
9000 047000 ctr]l Total - Revenues -207,786.73 -953,508.85
9000 047001 CONTROL - ESTIMATED REVENUE .00 1,988,500.00
9000 057000 CTRL TOTAL-EXPENDITURES 280,229.20 578,999.47
9000 057001 CTRL TOTAL-APPROPRIATIONS .00 -2,020,376.62
TOTAL FUND BALANCE 72,442 .47 -1,735,526.94
TOTAL LIABILITIES + FUND BALANCE 70,242.46 -4,488,744.62
Report generated: 11/08/2025 12:08 Page 1
User: j.labonte

Program ID: glbalsht



% Mmunis

CITY OF AUBURN SL

BALANCE SHEET FOR 2026 4

NET CHANGE ACCOUNT
FUND: 9020 Airport Capital Projects Fund FOR PERIOD
ASSETS
9020 011530 Accounts Receivable .00 103,973.78
9020 011535 Grants Receivable-FAA -293,160.16 -15,554.70
9020 011536 Grants Rec - State of Maine .00 7,305.41
9020 016000 Due to/from Other Funds -127,171.93 15,601,494.33
TOTAL ASSETS -420,332.09 15,697,218.82
FUND BALANCE - ]
9020 037000 ctrl Total - Encumbrances 2,525,799.33 3,645,836.94
9020 037104 FB-UNASSIGNED-CTY .00 -16,082,940.30
9020 037201 ctr]l Total - Bud FB Designated -2,525,799.33 -3,645,836.94
9020 037301 ctr]l Total - Bud FB Undesignat .00 230,037.63
9020 047000 ctrl Total - Revenues -300,000.00 -360,000.00
9020 057000 ctr] Total - Expenditures 720,332.09 745,721.48
9020 057001 ctr1l Total - Appropriations .00 -230,037.63
TOTAL FUND BALANCE 420,332.09 -15,697,218.82
TOTAL LIABILITIES + FUND BALANCE 420,332.09 -15,697,218.82

Report generated: 11/08/2025 12:08
User: j.labonte
Program ID: glbalsht

Page

a tyler erp solution



CITY OF AUBURN e Munis

a tyler erp solution

BALANCE SHEET FOR 2026 4

NET CHANGE ACCOUNT
FUND: 9030 Airport Land Fund FOR PERIOD
ASSETS
9030 011111 Investments-MM-Airpark .00 779,492.93
9030 016000 Due to/from Other Funds .00 -433,905.85
TOTAL ASSETS
FUND BALANCE — |
9030 037104 FB-UNASSIGNED-CTY .00 -340,012.18
9030 047000 ctrl Total - Revenues .00 -5,574.90
TOTAL FUND BALANCE
TOTAL LIABILITIES + FUND BALANCE
*%* END OF REPORT - Generated by Jonathan LaBonte **
Report generated: 11/08/2025 12:08 Page 3
User: j.labonte

Program ID: glbalsht



Auburn Air Center - Fuel Sales Comparison for Q1 - July, August, September (FY19 to FY26)

Quantity (gallons) by Year

Product Pay Type FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26
Avgas 100LL Cash 8194.9 8763.5 4943.2 3905.6 2991.2 7611.3 7254.5
Avgas 100LL Credit Card 5419.45 5670.2 5047.2 5076.9 4858.45 2985.4| 10379.7
TOTAL 100LL 13614.35 14433.7 9990.4 8982.5 7849.65 10596.7| 17634.2| 18585.6
Jet A Fuel Cash 19770.5 22713 3428 5476 1543 1194 203 85
Jet A Fuel Contract Fuel 21711 30302 22089 32254 28118.6 41266.5 31113 33748
Jet A Fuel Credit Card 14929.1 10727 5442 8891 7511 9658 6629 10848
TOTAL Jet A 56410.6 63742 30959 46621 37172.6 52118.5 37945 44681
Validated Aircraft LEW
T 100
AN P
/ / t 80
e 70
..... ! 60
50 : t
""""""""""""" 447" A 42 i \\ J T %
38 36 41 40
30 ¥
26 27 T 30
20
i i EE 10
11 11 t
: ; Fo
01/01/2016 01/01/2017 01/01/2018 01/01/2019 01/01/2020 01/01/2021 01/01/2022 01/01/2023 01/01/2024 01/01/2025 1/1/2026

B Series]l W Series2? — WEEEEM Series3 WM Series4  ewwsmmm Series5  -++++-+-- Total Validated Trend Line




RKO

RUI‘IyDﬂ Kersteen Ouellette Certified Public Accountants and Business Consultants

To the Board of Directors
Auburn-Lewiston Municipal Airport

We have audited the financial statements of the Auburn-Lewiston Municipal Airport for the year ended
June 30, 2024. Professional standards require that we provide you with information about our
responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards and the
Uniform Guidance, as well as certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit.
We have communicated such information in our meeting with the board Chair on September 11, 2024.
Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the following information related to
our audit.

Our Responsibilities under U.S. Generally Accepted Auditing Standards, and Government Auditing
Standards

As stated in our engagement letter dated November 11, 2024, our responsibility, as described by
professional standards, is to express an opinion about whéther the financial statements prepared by
management with your oversight are fairly presénted, in all'material respects, in conformity with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles. Our audit of the financial statements does not relieve you or
management of your responsibilities.

As part of our audit, we considereddhe system of internal control of Auburn-Lewiston Municipal Airport.
Such considerations are solely forthe purposerof,determining our audit procedures and not to provide
any assurance concerning such internal€ontrol.

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Auburn-Lewiston Municipal Airport’s financial
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulatigns, contracts, and grants. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit.

Significant Audit Matters

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant
accounting policies used by the Auburn-Lewiston Municipal Airport are described in the notes to the
financial statements. The Auburn-Lewiston Municipal Airport changed accounting policies related to
financial reporting by adopting Statements on Governmental Accounting Standards (GASB Statement)
No. 100, Accounting Changes and Error Corrections, in 2024. No other new accounting policies were
adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed during 2024. We noted no transactions
entered into by the Auburn-Lewiston Municipal Airport during the year for which there is a lack of
authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial
statements in the proper period.



Board of Directors
Page 2

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are
based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions
about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance
to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ
significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimates affecting the Auburn-Lewiston Municipal
Airport’s financial statements were:

1. Management’s estimate of the historical cost of certain assets, and the related depreciation
expense, which is based on historical cost and estimated useful lives of assets,

2. Management’s estimate of the net pension liability, which is based on actuarial studies.

3. Management’s estimate of the discount rate and term used in the calculation of the lease
receivable and related deferred inflow of resources.

We evaluated the methods, assumptions, and data used to develop these estimates in determining that
they are reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken@sa whole.

Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sénsitive because of their significance to the
financial statement users. The financial statement disclosures aré neutral, consistent, and clear.

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing
our audit.

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards requirepus to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during
the audit, other than theSe that are,clearly. trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of
management. Management has corrected all such misstatements. The attached list of Adjusting
Journal Entries represents misstatements, some of which were material, detected as a result of audit
procedures and that were corrected’by management.

Also attached is a listing of Passed Adjusting Journal Entries that summarizes the uncorrected
misstatements of the financial statements. Management has determined that their effects are
immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole. The
uncorrected misstatements or the matters underlying them could potentially cause future period
financial statements to be materially misstated, even though, in our judgment, such uncorrected
misstatements are immaterial to the financial statements under audit.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or
auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial
statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during
the course of our audit.



Board of Directors
Page 3

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the attached
management representation letter dated

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation
involves application of an accounting principle to the Auburn-Lewiston Municipal Airport’s financial
statements or a determination of the type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those
statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine
that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, theré were no such consultations with
other accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including thefapplication of accounting principles and auditing
standards, with management each year prior to retentiomias the Auburn-Lewiston Municipal Airport’s
auditors. However, these discussions occurred in.the normal course of our professional relationship and
our responses were not a condition to our retention.

Other Matters

We applied certain limited procédures to the management’s discussion and analysis, schedule of
Airport’s proportionate share of theynet pension liability and the schedule of Airport contributions,
which are required supplementary information (RSI) that supplements the basic financial statements.
Our procedures consistéd of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the
information and comgparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial,statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic
financial statements. We did not addit the RSI and do not express an opinion or provide any assurance
on the RSI.

We were engaged to report on the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position —
budget and actual, and the combining financial statements, which accompany the financial statements
but are not RSI. With respect to this supplementary information, we made certain inquiries of
management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to determine
that the information complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America, the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information is
appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements. We compared and
reconciled the supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the
financial statements or to the financial statements themselves.



Board of Directors
Page 4

Restriction on Use

This information is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors and
management of the Auburn-Lewiston Municipal Airport and is not intended to be, and should not be,
used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Very truly yours,



Auburn Lewiston Airport
Adjusting Journal Entries
June 30, 2024

Account Description Debit Credit

100

To adjust lease receivable and related accounts to actual as of year end.

9005-422000 Investment Income - 62,284.02
9000-429025 Rental Fees 39,235.49 -
9000-11545 Lease Receivable 329,111.67 -
9000-29000 Deferred Inflow - Leases - 306,063.14
Total 368,347.16 368,347.16
101

To record change in net pension liability and related accounts.

9000-26000 NET PENSION LIABILITY - 19,126.00
9000-25000 DEF INFLOW NET PENSION 13,385.48 -
9000-13000 DEF OUTFLOW-NET PENSION - 11,291.93
9000-680000 Pension expense 17,032.45 -
Total 30,417.93 30,417.93
102

To adjust grant receivable to actual as of year end.

9020-440000-PR026 Local Airport -RUNWAY REHAB 253,234.26 -
9020-440000-PR032 RAMP EAST APRON 114,709.18 -
9020-11530 Accounts Receivable - 726,250.07
9020-440000-PR0O27 Local Airport -NAVAIDS REIMB 165.05 -
9020-440000-PR028 RECONSTRUCT-TAXI B & 343,846.65 -
9020-440000-PRO35 Local Airport Project Revenue - 12,219.90
9020-440000-PR0O32 RAMP EAST APRON - 23,532.03
9020-650000-PR027 Capital-NAVAIDS REIMB 50,046.86 -
Total 762,002.00 __762,002.00
103

To adjust prepaid expenses,to actual as of year end.

9000-11810 Prepaid Expenses - 15,162.01
9004-645000 Insurance Premiums 15,162.01 -
Total _15,162.01 _15,162.01
104

To move excise tax revenue to land fund.

9005-402003 Tax Sharing Revenue 70,245.00 -
9030-402003 Excise Tax revenue - 70,245.00
9000-16000 DUE TO / DUE FROM - 70,245.00
9030-16000 Due to/from Other Funds 70,245.00 -
Total 140,490.00 _140,490.00
105

To correct posting of lease receivable.

9000-11540 Allowance for Uncollected Accts 1,747,727.63 -
9000-11545 Lease Receivable - 1,747,727.63
Total —1,747,727.63 _1,747,727.63



106
To adjust inventory to actual as of year end.

9000-11900 INVENTORY FOR RESALE
9015-633030 Fuels & Oils

Total

107

To record CIP, capital asset and depreciation activity.
9000-12112 Construction In Progress
9000-12111 Land Improvements
9020-650000-L23 Capital AVGAS SELF SERVICE
9020-650000-REA EAST APRON
9020-440000-PR0O27 Local Airport -NAVAIDS REIMB

9000-12310 Buildings & Bldg Improvements
9020-650000-L24 TERMINAL ROOF REPLACEMENT
9000-12410 Machinery & Equipment
9000-12900 Accumulated Depreciation
9000-12900 Accumulated Depreciation

9004-659000 Depreciation Expense
9020-650000 RAMP EAST APRON
9020-650000-PRO32  EAST APRON

9020-650000-PR027 Capital-NAVAIDS REIMB
Total

108

39,495.24

39,495.24

1,916,601.16

79,421.00
54,480.00

39,495.24
39,495.24

1,772,368.95
115,821.00
43,127.81

42,980.00
16,900.00
1,268,264.00

53,283.05
11,421.90

11,499.45
3,335,666.16

To correct beginning balance for underreported depreciatiol in FY23.

9000-12900 Accumulated Depreciatio - 429,533.95
9000-37104 FB UNASSIGNED 429,533.95 -
Total 429,533.95 429,533.95
109

To reverse erroneous adjustmen eivable balance.

9000-11530 22,654.24 -
9000-429025 - 20,968.98
9002-641100 - 1,685.26
Total 22,654.24 22,654.24
110

To clear out remaini ash account which was closed during the year.

9030-11113 s-MILESTONES CD - 240.21
9030-16000 from Other Funds 240.21 -
9000-16000 DUE TO / DUE FROM - 240.21
9005-422000 Investment Income 240.21 -
Total 480.42 ____480.42



Auburn Lewiston Airport
Passed Adjusting Journal Entries

June 30, 2024
Account Description Debit Credit
1
To record OPEB liabilities as of year end.
9000-26001 OPEB Liability - 62,896.00
9000-13001 Deferred outflow of resources - OPEB 535.00 -
9000-25001 Deferred inflow of resources - OPEB - 5,064.00
9001-611000 Regular Salaries - -
9000-37104 FB UNASSIGNED 58,537.00 -
59,072.00 67,960.00
2
To correct beginning fund balance as of year end.
9000-37100 FB ASSIGNED CITY - 4,182.66
9000-429025 Rental Fees 4,182.66 -
4,182.66 4,182.66
3
To restate beginning net position for missing leases in prio r.
9000-11545 Lease Receivable 127,203.13 -
9000-29000 Deferred Inflow - Leases - 126,137.31
9000-37104 FB UNASSIGNED - 1,065.82
127,203.13 127,203.13



AUBURN-LEWISTON MUNICIPAL AIRPORT
Financial Statements

For the years ended June 30, 2024, and 2023



AUBURN-LEWISTON MUNICIPAL AIRPORT
Financial Statements
For the years ended June 30, 2024, and 2023

Table of Contents

Independent Auditor's Report
Managements Discussion and Analysis

Basic Financial Statements:
Statements of Net Position
Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
Statements of Cash Flows

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Required Supplementary Information

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net\Position= Budget
and Actual
Combining Financial Statements:
Combining Statement of Net Positiof
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expensés,’and Changes in Net Position

Statement

N

Exhibit

A-1

A-2

11

12-20

21-23

24

25
26



RKO

RUI‘IyDﬂ Kersteen Ouellette Certified Public Accountants and Business Consultants

Independent Auditor’s Report

Board of Directors
The Auburn-Lewiston Municipal Airport

Report on Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Auburn-Lewiston Municipal Airport as of
and for the years ended June 30, 2024, and 2023, and the relatedfiotes to the financial statements,
which collectively comprise the Auburn-Lewiston Municipal Airport’s basic financial statements as listed
in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Auburn-Lewiston Municipal Aifport as«of June 30, 2024, and 2023, and the
changes in financial position and its cash flows for the years thén ended, in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance.with auditing(standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable \to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptréller Genéral of the United States. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described “iny the Auditor’s” Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Auburn-Lewiston Municipal
Airport and to meet oUr other ethical sresponsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical
requirements relatingo our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provideia basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Auburn-Lewiston
Municipal Airport’s ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial
statement date, including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly
thereafter.



Board of Directors
Page 2

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and
therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditings&tandards and Government Auditing
Standards, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professionalgkepticism throughout the audit.

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive ta those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding thé amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal contrahrelevant to'the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but‘not.for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Auburn-Lewiston Municipal® Airport’s internal control. Accordingly, no such
opinion is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriatenessfof accounting ‘policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates madel by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in@ur judgment)there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that
raise substantial doubt about'the Auburn-Lewiston Municipal Airport’s ability to continue as a going
concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with‘those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the‘audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters
that we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis, and the schedule of Airport’s proportionate share of the net pension liability and the
Schedule of Airport Contributions as listed in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the
basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to
be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not
provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.



Board of Directors
Page 3

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Auburn-Lewiston Municipal Airport’s basic financial statements. The budget and actual and
combining financial statements are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part
of the basic financial statements. This information is the responsibility of management and was derived from
and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to
the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the budget and actual and
combining financial statements are fairly stated, in all material respects; in relation to the basic financial
statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we haye also issued our report dated on
our consideration of the Auburn-Lewiston Municipal Airport’s interfal control over financial reporting and on
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describeithe scope of our testing of internal control
over financial reporting and compliance and the resultsiof that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of Auburn-Lewiston Municipal Airport’s dnternal, control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral partzof an auditéperformed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the Auburn-Léwiston Municipal Airport’s internal control over financial reporting
and compliance.

South Portland, Maine



AUBURN-LEWISTON MUNICIPAL AIRPORT
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Year Ended June 30, 2024

l. Introduction of the Financial Statements

Overview of Financial Report

The Auburn-Lewiston Municipal Airport (the Airport) is a quasi-municipal organization, created by an
interlocal agreement between the cities of Auburn and Lewiston, providing airport operations and
management along with aviation services as a Fixed-Base Operator. The Airport is categorized by the Federal
Aviation Administration as a Reliever Airport with Regional Impacts.

This Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) serves as an introduction to the audited basic financial
statements and notes. The MD&A is the Airport Management’s analysis of its financial condition and
performance. It is presented to give the reader more insight on the Airport’s finances.

The Airport’s basic financial statements include:

e Statements of Net Position

e Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Nét Position
e Statements of Cash Flows

e Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

Financial Highlights:
e The Airport reported a decrease in net position.of $684;502 due in part to the depreciation of capital
assets. Net investment in capital@ssets had a‘decrease of $1,069,552 in net position.

e Unrestricted net position had an increase of.$385,050 from $1,071,874 to $1,456,924 due to the
operating gains made during the fiscal.year.

Il. Comparison of Financial Statements.for Current and Prior Years

Fiscal Year 2024 Airport, operational revenue increased $266,678 from Fiscal Year 2023. Operational
expenditures had an increase of $161,756. Nonoperating revenues (expense) had a decrease of $1,298,971.
The decrease was primarily duéitodhe reduction of capital grants activity.

The Statements of Net Position (Statement 1) and the Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in
Net Position (Statement 2)

The analysis of the Airport’s overall financial condition and operations begins on this page. Its primary purpose
is to show whether the financial position of the Airport is improving or not. The Statement of Net Position
includes all the Airport’s assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources
at the end of the year while the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position includes all
the revenues and expenses generated by the Airport’s operations during the year.



AUBURN-LEWISTON MUNICIPAL AIRPORT
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Year Ended June 30, 2024

These two statements report the Airport’s net position and changes in it. The Airport’s net position (the
difference between assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources)
provides one measure of the Airport’s financial health, or financial position. Over time, increases or decreases
in the Airport’s net position is one indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating. To
fully assess the overall health of the Airport, however, you should consider non-financial factors as well, such
as changes in the socio-makeup of the Airport’s users and the condition of the Airport’s facilities.

Condensed Statements of Net Position

Restated
2024 2023 Difference $

ASSETS:
Current and other assets 3,264,540 2,675,260 S 589,280
Capital assets, net 17,477,851 18,547,403 (1,069,552)

Total assets 20,742,391 21,222,663 (480,272)
Deferred outflows of resources related to pension: 21,467 32,759 (11,292)
Total deferred outflows of resources 21,467 32,759 (11,292)
LIABILITIES:
Current liabilities 274,769 298,327 (23,558)
Noncurrent liabilities 1,198,192 1,274,375 (76,183)

Total liabilities 1,472,961 1,572,702 (99,741)
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions 10,131 23,516 (13,385)
Deferred inflows of resources related to léases 1,545,054 1,238,990 306,064
Total deferred inflows of res@urces 1,555,185 1,262,506 292,679
NET POSITION:
Net investment in capital‘@assets 16,278,788 17,348,340 (1,069,552)
Unrestricted 1,456,924 1,071,874 385,050

Total net position S 17,735,712 S 18,420,214 S (684,502)

Current Assets (cash, investments, accounts and grants receivable, inventory, and prepaid expenses)

The increase in current and other assets of $589,280 is due an increase in cash and the receivables from new
non-aeronautical leases following a previous year decline from the termination of the lease in Hangar #5.

Capital Assets (land, improvements, buildings, equipment, vehicles, and construction in progress)

Capital assets decreased $1,069,552 due to depreciation coupled with no active federal or state funded
construction projects during the fiscal year.

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources
Deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources arise due to the implementation of GASB Statement No.

68 and 87. Please refer to the notes to the financial statements for discussion and explanation of deferred
outflows and deferred inflows of resources and their impact on the financial statements of the Airport.



AUBURN-LEWISTON MUNICIPAL AIRPORT
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Year Ended June 30, 2024

Current Liabilities (accounts payable - i.e., vendor bills, unearned revenue, and accrued payroll)

Current liabilities decreased by $23,558 over the previous fiscal year due to reduced capital project activity,
offset by an increase in the current portion of notes payable.

Noncurrent Liabilities

The Airport is obligated under two note agreements, one with each Airport sponsor/city for Hangar #5, with
a total noncurrent balance of $1,114,999. During the fiscal year the payments for these agreements were
deferred one year.

Net Investment in Capital Assets

Net investment in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of accudmulated depreciation, reduced by the
outstanding balances of loans payable. Net investment in capitalfassets decreased by $1,069,552, mostly
through accumulated depreciation.

Unrestricted Net Position

Unrestricted, undesignated net position increased by 35% over the last fiscal year.

Condensed Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

Restated

2024 2023 Difference $ Difference %

Operating revenues S 1,433,241 S 1,025,364 S 107,877 11%
Municipal subsidies 568,801 410,000 158,801 39%
Nonoperating revenues 558,056 1,877,453 (1,319,397) -70%
Total revenues 2,260,098 3,312,817 (1,052,719) -32%
Depreciation expense 1,268,264 1,185,470 82,794 7%
Operating expenses 1,676,336 1,597,374 78,962 5%
Nonoperating expenses - 20,426 (20,426) -100%
Total expenses 2,944,600 2,803,270 141,330 5%
Change in net position S (684,502) S 509,547 S (1,194,049) -234%




AUBURN-LEWISTON MUNICIPAL AIRPORT
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Year Ended June 30, 2024

Operating Revenues

Airport operating revenues are derived from rents, user fees charges for plane tie-downs, landing fees and
fuel flowage fees. The Airport also receives revenues from aircraft hangar fees, aircraft fueling, and flight
support services like ground power units, rental car coordination, and catering. To that end, operating
revenues saw an 11% increase from the prior year or $107,877. The airport was experiencing increases in
traffic from aircraft and improved in fuel sales over previous fiscal years.

Operating Subsidies

The municipalities of Auburn and Lewiston equally support the Airport through an operating subsidy. This
subsidy increased by $158,801 or 39% from the previous fiscal year due to sponsor contributions for federal
projects as matching funds.

Non-operating Revenues (Expenses)

Normally, nonoperating revenues are derived from interest, €xcise tax, gainion sale of assets and grants from
both federal and state agencies. Nonoperating revenués (expenses) decreased in the current year by
$1,319,397 (70%) mostly due to the lack of major constructionsroject payments (FY2023 included the East
Ramp).

Depreciation Expense

This fiscal year depreciation expense ineréased by $82,794 over last year. This is a 7% increase from the prior
year’s total. Infrastructure continuesto be developed.and maintenance on the current infrastructure at the
airport is seeing an increase.

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses, excluding depreciation expense, increased 5%. The increase is partly due to increased
pavement maintenance activities on the airfield and the transfer of utilities and other obligations with Hangar
#5. Professional services increased5238,841 as the airport shifted some airport staff positions to contractors
to control costs. These increases are offset by decreases in salaries and fringe benefits. Gasoline and oil for
resale increases correspond to increased revenue from the sales of those products.



AUBURN-LEWISTON MUNICIPAL AIRPORT
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Year Ended June 30, 2024

Restated

Operating expenses consisted of: 2024 2023 Difference $ Difference %

Salaries S 176,665 S 489,050 S (312,385) -64%
Fringe benefits 81,875 155,830 (73,955) -47%
Overtime 6,742 11,299 (4,557) -40%
Advertising 2,731 12,476 (9,745) -78%
Telephone and internet 9,803 5,048 4,755 94%
Insurance 37,222 36,221 1,001 3%
Legal fees 14,808 37,700 (22,892) -61%
Professional services 279,346 40,505 238,841 590%
Utilities 92,513 67,290 25,223 37%
Snow and ice control - 17,385 (17,385) -100%
Building and radio maintenance 34,790 48,947 (14,157) -29%
Electrical maintenance 7,218 7,757 (539) -7%
Vehicle maintenance 26,249 21,041 5,208 25%
Airfield maintenance 13,804 18,409 (4,605) -25%
Pavement maintenance 45,329 - 45,329 N/A
Office machine/computer repairs 18,705 20,657 (1,952) -9%
Travel and training 3,161 1,938 1,223 63%
Office supplies 4,353 4,436 (83) -2%
Gasoline and oil - motor vehicle supplies 25,732 18,175 7,557 42%
Gasoline and oil - for resale 596,288 543,810 52,478 10%
Plant equipment 3,134 7,926 (4,792) -60%
Ground support equipment 24,665 27,680 (3,015) -11%
Repairs aircrafts - 537 (537) -100%
Miscellaneous repairs and maintenance 171,203 3,257 167,946 5156%
Depreciation 1,268,264 1,185,470 82,794 7%
Total operating expenses S 2,944,600 2,782,844 161,756 6%

Significant SubsequentEvents

Auburn-Lewiston Airport has completed the East Ramp project. The engineering efforts have begun on a self-
service station for 100LL aviation gas, which was scheduled to be online during FY2025.

Contacting the Airport’s Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide the citizens, taxpayers, customers, and creditors with a general
overview of the Airport’s finances and to show the Airport’s accountability for the money it receives. If you
have any questions about this report or need additional information, contact the Airport Director, at 207-786-
0631.



AUBURN-LEWISTON MUNICIPAL AIRPORT
Statements of Net Position
June 30, 2024, and 2023

Statement 1

Restated
2024 2023
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents S 1,224,710 380,549
Accounts receivable 204,454 84,894
Grants receivable 114,714 855,318
Lease receivable 1,609,982 1,280,871
Inventory for resale 97,961 58,466
Prepaid expenses 12,719 15,162
Total current assets 3,264,540 2,675,260
Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets:
Land 1,747,208 1,717,208
Construction-in-progress 169,104 1,941,473
Land improvements 28,889,145 26,972,544
Buildings 4,512,923 4,458,443
Equipment and vehicles 1,746,984 1,763,884
Less accumulated depreciation (19,557,513) (18,306,149)
Net capital assets 17,477,851 18,547,403
Total assets 20,742,391 21,222,663
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions 21,467 32,759
Total deferred outflows of resources 21,467 32,759
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued payroll 168,749 268,823
Unearned revenue 1,530 9,078
Accrued intefest 20,426 20,426
Current portion of notes payable 84,064 -
Total current liabilities 274,769 298,327
Noncurrent liabilities:
Net pension liability 59,690 40,564
Notes payable 1,114,999 1,199,063
Accrued compensated absences 23,503 34,748
Total noncurrent liabilities 1,198,192 1,274,375
Total liabilities 1,472,961 1,572,702
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions 10,131 23,516
Deferred inflows of resources related to leases 1,545,054 1,238,990
Total deferred inflows of resources 1,555,185 1,262,506
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 16,278,788 17,348,340
Unrestricted:
Designated for excise tax 70,245 46,200
Undesignated 1,386,679 1,025,674
Total net position S 17,735,712 18,420,214

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

9



AUBURN-LEWISTON MUNICIPAL AIRPORT
Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
For the years ended June 30, 2024, and 2023

Statement 2

Restated
2024 2023
Operating revenues:
Charges to users:
Rents S 112,099 128,502
Tie-down fees 74,488 50,723
Landing fees 28,872 29,730
Fuel sales 785,037 720,066
Fees - catering 214 1,231
Off hour call out 9,275 14,600
Aircraft maintenance 5,258 2,219
Municipal operating subsidies 568,801 410,000
Sale of Christian Hill materials 91,837 71,867
Other operating and miscellaneous 26,161 6,426
Total operating revenues 1,702,042 1,435,364
Operating expenses:
Salaries 176,665 489,050
Fringe benefits 81,875 155,830
Overtime 6,742 11,299
Advertising 2,731 12,476
Telephone and internet 9,803 5,048
Insurance 37,222 36,221
Legal fees 14,808 37,700
Professional services 279,346 40,505
Utilities 92,513 67,290
Snow and ice control - 17,385
Building and radio maintenance 34,790 48,947
Electrical maintenance 7,218 7,757
Vehicle maintenance 26,249 21,041
Airfield maintenance 13,804 18,409
Pavement maintenance 45,329 -
Office machine/computerrepairs 18,705 20,657
Travel and training 3,161 1,938
Office supplies 4,353 4,436
Gasoline and oil -‘motor vehicle supplies 25,732 18,175
Gasoline and oil - forresale 596,288 543,810
Plant equipment 3,134 7,926
Ground support equipment 24,665 27,680
Repairs aircrafts - 537
Miscellaneous repairs and maintenance 171,203 3,257
Depreciation 1,268,264 1,185,470
Total operating expenses 2,944,600 2,782,844

Operating loss

(1,242,558)

(1,347,480)

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):

Interest and property tax expense - (20,426)
Interest revenue 75,897 56,762
Capital grants and subsidy 134,684 1,731,500
Gain on sale of assets 340,462 49,170
Excise tax 24,045 23,100
Amortization of change in net pension liability (17,032) 16,921
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 558,056 1,857,027

Change in net position (684,502) 509,547

Net position, beginning of year 18,420,214 17,910,667
Net position, end of year S 17,735,712 18,420,214

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

10



Statement 3

AUBURN-LEWISTON MUNICIPAL AIRPORT
Statements of Cash Flows
For the years ended June 30, 2024, and 2023

Restated
2024 2023
Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from cities and users S 1,551,887 1,494,842
Payments to employees (276,527) (654,500)
Payments to vendors (1,548,180) (827,463)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities (272,820) 12,879
Cash flow from capital and related financing activities:
Purchase of capital assets (198,711) (2,032,525)
Capital grants and subsidy 875,288 1,716,821
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 340,462 49,170
Excise tax receipts 24,045 23,100
Net cash provided by (used in) capital and related financingactivities 1,041,084 (243,434)
Cash flow from investing activities:
Net sale (purchase) of investments - 443,883
Investment income 75,897 56,762
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 75,897 500,645
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 844,161 270,090
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 380,549 110,459
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year S 1,224,710 380,549

Cash flows from operating activities:
Operating loss (1,242,558) (1,347,480)
Adjustment to reconcile net'operating gain|(loss) to net cash
provided by (used in) operating,activities:

Depreciation 1,268,264 1,185,470

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (119,560) 29,287
(Increase) decrease in lease receivable (329,111) 1,747,727
(Increase) decrease in inventory (39,495) 30,102
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses 2,443 (10,897)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued payroll (100,074) 94,527
Increase (decrease) in deferred inflow related to lease 306,064 (1,726,614)
Increase (decrease) in deferred income (7,548) 9,078
Increase (decrease) in accrued compensated absences (11,245) 1,679
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities S (272,820) 12,879

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

11



AUBURN-LEWISTON MUNICIPAL AIRPORT
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization - The Auburn-Lewiston Municipal Airport is a joint venture of the cities of Auburn and Lewiston
organized as a nonprofit corporation under the laws of the State of Maine for the purpose of operating,
maintaining, and improving facilities to provide optimum air transportation service for the greater Auburn-
Lewiston area. Beginning in 2013, the Airport began providing flight support and aircraft fueling services. Prior to
2013, these services were provided by an independent contractor.

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting - The accounting and financial reporting treatment is determined by
the applicable measurement focus and basis of accounting. Measurement focus indicates the type of resources
being measured. The basis of accounting indicates the timing of transactions or events for recognition in the
financial statements. The Airport's financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when eafned and expenses are recorded when a
liability is incurred regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Gfants and similar items are recognized as
revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the providér have been met.

The Airport distinguishes operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues and
expenses generally result from providing services in connection with ongoing operations. The principal operating
revenues of the Airport are charges to customers. Operating expénses include the cost of personnel, contractual
services, administrative expenses, and depreciation gnpcapital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this
definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resotrces, are available for use, it is the Airport’s policy to use restricted
resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed, except in instances in which restricted amounts
must be maintained to comply with existing bond eovenants.

Cash and Cash Equivalents - For purposes of the statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents are
considered to be cash on hand and demand depasits.

Accounts Receivable - The Airport operates in the Auburn/Lewiston area and grants credit for fees, services and
products to Airport customers that areddeclared based aircraft owners. Transient and commercial customers are
required to tender payment at the time of product or service delivery.

Leases - The Airport is the lessor for certain non-cancellable leases of space within its jurisdiction. The Airport has
recognized lease receivables and deferred inflows of resources in the financial statements. At the commencement
of the leases, the Airport measures the lease asset at the present value of payments expected to be made during
the lease terms. Subsequently, the lease asset is reduced by the principal portion of the lease payments received.
The deferred inflow of resources is initially measured as the initial amount of the lease receivable, adjusted for
lease payments made at or before the lease commencement date. Subsequently, the lease deferred inflow of
resources is recognized as revenue over the life of the lease term.

12



AUBURN-LEWISTON MUNICIPAL AIRPORT
Notes to Basic Financial Statements, Continued

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, CONTINUED

Key estimates and judgments include how the Airport determines (1) the discount rate it uses to discount the
expected lease receipts to present value, (2) lease term, and (3) lease receipts.
e The Airport uses its estimated incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate for leases.
e The lease term includes the noncancellable period of the leases.
e Lease receipts included in the measurement of the lease receivable are composed of fixed payments from
the lessee.

The Airport monitors changes in circumstances that would require a remeasurement of its leases and will
remeasure the lease receivable and deferred inflows of resources if certain changes occur that are expected to
significantly affect the amount of the lease receivable.

Inventory - The Airport’s inventory, which consists mainly of fuel, oil,dand miscellaneous spare parts, is valued at
the lower of cost or market using the first-in, first-out method. The cost of inventories is recorded as expenses
when consumed rather than when purchased.

Capital Assets - Capital assets are defined by the Airport as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000
and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical
cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assétsyare recorded,at estimated acquisition value at the date of
donation. The costs of normal repairs and maintenance that'do'nhet addto the value of the asset or materially extend
assets lives are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.

Property, plant, and equipment of the primary government are depreciated using the straight-line method over the
assets' estimated useful lives ranging from 3 to 25 years as follows:

Assets Years
Computers and equipment 3-5
Vehicles 5-15
Hangers and buildings 12-25
Land improvements 12-20

Deferred Inflows and Outflows of Resources - In addition to assets and liabilities, the statement of net position
will sometimes report separate sections for deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources.
These separate financial statement elements, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources,
represent a consumption or acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be
recognized as an outflow of resources (expense) or inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The Airport
reports deferred outflows and inflows that relate to the net pension liability, which include the Airport’s
contributions subsequent to the measurement date, which is recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability
in the subsequent year. They also include changes in assumptions, differences between expected and actual
experience, and changes in proportion and differences between the Airport’s contributions and proportionate
share of contributions, which are deferred and amortized over the average expected remaining service lives of
active and inactive members in the plan. They also include the net difference between projected and actual
earnings on pension plan investments, which is deferred and amortized over a five-year period. The Airport also
reports a deferred inflow of resources related to leases that is amortized over the expected term of the lease.

13



AUBURN-LEWISTON MUNICIPAL AIRPORT
Notes to Basic Financial Statements, Continued

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, CONTINUED

Vacation and Sick Leave - Under the terms of the Airport’s employee handbook, vacation and sick leave are
granted in varying amounts according to length of service. At June 30, 2024 and 2023, the amount of accrued sick
and vacation amounted to $23,503 and $34,748, respectively, and has been recorded on the Statements of Net
Position as accrued compensated absences.

Income Taxes - The Airport qualifies as a tax-exempt organization under the provisions of the Internal Revenue
Code and, accordingly, its income is not subject to any state or federal income taxes.

Use of Estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Operating Subsidies - During the budgetary process, the directors of Auburn=Lewiston Municipal Airport estimate
the operating deficiency for the subsequent year. Such deficienciés are funded equally by the Cities of Auburn and
Lewiston.

Pensions - For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension‘expense, infarmation about the fiduciary net position of the
Maine Public Employees Retirement System Consolidated Plan for Participating Local Districts (PLD Plan) and
additions to/deductions from the Plan’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are
reported by the Plan. For this purpose, bénefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are
recognized when due and payable in accefdance with the'benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

DEPOSITS

The Airport has not formally adopted a depositpolicy that limits allowable deposits or addresses the specific types
of risk to which the Airport’sideposits may be exposed.

As of June 30, 2024, and 2023, the Airport’s carrying amount of bank deposits were $1,224,710 and $380,549,
respectively, and the bank balances'were $1,268,764 and $435,050, respectively. The entire bank balances were
covered by Federal Depository Insurance.

EXCISE TAX REVENUE

Excise taxes paid on vehicles and aircraft by businesses located at the Airport are distributed to the Cities of
Auburn and Lewiston and the Airport in shares of 40%, 25%, and 35%, respectively.

According to the tax sharing agreement, which sunsets in 2029, all excise tax revenue received by the Airport is
held in a trust fund for capital purposes only. The balance of this reserve for the year ended June 30, 2024, and
2023 was $70,245 and $46,200, respectively.

14



AUBURN-LEWISTON MUNICIPAL AIRPORT

Notes to Basic Financial Statements, Continued

CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2024 was as follows:

(Restated)
Balance Balance
June 30, June 30,
2023 Increases Decreases 2024
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land S 1,717,208 - - 1,717,208
Construction-in-progress 1,941,473 223,654 1,996,023 169,104
Total capital assets not being depreciated 3,658,681 223,654 1,996,023 1,886,312
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Land improvements 26,972,544 1,916,601 - 28,889,145
Buildings 4,458,443 54,480 - 4,512,923
Equipment and vehicles 1,763,884 - 16,900 1,746,984
Total capital assets being depreciated 33,194,871 1,971,081 16,900 35,149,052
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Land improvements 14,562,664 1,017,853 - 15,580,517
Buildings 2,543,035 173,583 - 2,716,618
Equipment and vehicles 1,200,450 76,828 16,900 1,260,378
Total accumulated depreciation 18,306,149 1,268,264 16,900 19,557,513
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 14,888,722 702,817 - 15,591,539
Capital assets, net $ 18,547,403 926,471 1,996,023 17,477,851
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Long-term liability activity for the'year ended June 30, 2024 was as follows:
Beginning Ending Due within
balance Additions Reductions balance one year
Business-type activities:
Notes from direct borrowings* $ 1,199,063 - - 1,199,063 84,064
Net pension liability 40,564 19,126 - 59,690 -
Accrued compensated absences 34,748 - 11,245 23,503 -
Business-type activity
long-term liabilities $1,274,375 19,126 11,245 1,282,256 84,064

* Due to cash flow issues at the airport, the notes held by the City of Auburn and City of Lewiston were approved
to be deferred for fiscal year 2023 and 2024. During this time, no additional interest will accrue and the payments
will resume at the same point in the amortization schedule.

15



AUBURN-LEWISTON MUNICIPAL AIRPORT

Notes to Basic Financial Statements, Continued

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES, CONTINUED

Notes from direct borrowings consisted of the following at June 30, 2024 and 2023:

2024 2023

Note payable to City of Auburn, interest at 2.58%,

due in annual installments of $57,500 plus interest,

through November 2036 S 599,532 599,532
Note payable to City of Lewiston, interest at 2.58%,

due in annual installments of $57,500 plus interest,

through November 2036 599,531 599,531

Total long-term notes payable $ 1,199,063 1,199,063

The annual requirements to amortize all notes outstanding as of June 30, 2024 are as follows:

Year ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total

2025 84,064 30,936 115,000
2026 86,233 28,767 115,000
2027 88,458 26,542 115,000
2028 90,740 24,260 115,000
2029 93,081 21,919 115,000
2030-2034 544,266 70,734 615,000
2035-2036 212,221 7,867 220,088

Total S 1,199,063 211,025 1,410,088

LEASE AGREEMENTS

The Airport regularly operates and leases property and buildings within its jurisdiction to third parties. During the
current fiscal year, the Airport was the lessor for nine such long-term arrangements. Many of these arrangements

include various price escalators and extension terms.

The Airport recognized $89,770 in lease revenue and $58,038 in related interest revenue during the current fiscal
year. As of June 30, 2024 and 2023, the Airport’s receivable for lease payments was $1,609,982, and $1,280,871,
respectively. Also, the Airport has a deferred inflow of resources associated with the leases that will be recognized
as revenue over the lease term. As of June 30, 2024 and 2023, the balance of the deferred inflow of resources was

$1,545,054, and $1,238,990, respectively.

16



AUBURN-LEWISTON MUNICIPAL AIRPORT
Notes to Basic Financial Statements, Continued

LEASE AGREEMENTS

The future principal and interest lease payments as of June 30, 2024 were as follows:

Fiscal year ending June 30, Principal Interest
2025 S 85,700 62,833
2026 86,418 59,397
2027 89,906 55,878
2028 84,097 52,326
2029 82,693 49,049
2030-2034 456,548 191,969
2035-2039 322,517 112,797
2040-2044 92,028 66,986
2045-2049 37,592 58,301
2050-2054 41,778 50,527
2055-2059 46,609 41,376
2060-2064 37,444 33,261
2065-2069 45,716 24,986
2070-2074 14,591 18,608
2075-2079 15;421 15,804
2080-2084 18,829 12,396
2085-2089 22,990 8,235
2090-2094 28,069 3,153
2095 1,036 5
Total $+1;609,982 917,887
NET POSITION

Net position represents the difference between assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred
inflows of resources. Net investment in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation,
reduced by the outstanding balancesf notes. The Airport’s net investment in capital assets, as shown on
Statement 1, was calculated as follows at June 30, 2024:

2024 2023
Capital assets S 37,035,364 36,853,552
Accumulated depreciation (19,557,513) (18,306,149)
Notes from direct borrowings (1,199,063) (1,199,063)
Total net investment in capital assets S 16,278,788 17,348,340

17



AUBURN-LEWISTON MUNICIPAL AIRPORT
Notes to Basic Financial Statements, Continued

NET PENSION LIABILITY

General Information about the Pension Plan

Plan Description - Employees of the Airport are provided with pensions through the Maine Public Employees
Retirement System Consolidated Plan for Local Participating Districts (PLD Plan), a cost-sharing multiple-employer
defined benefit pension plan, administered by the Maine Public Employees Retirement System (MPERS). Benefit
terms are established in Maine statute; in the case of the PLD Plan, an advisory group, also established by statute,
reviews the terms of the plan and periodically makes recommendations to the Maine State Legislature to amend
the terms. MPERS issues a publicly available financial report that can be obtained at www.mainepers.org.

Benefits Provided - The PLD Plan provides defined retirement benefits based on members’ average final
compensation and service credit earned as of retirement. Vesting (i.ef eligibility for benefits upon reaching
qualification) occurs upon the earning of five years of service credit. Infsome cases, vesting occurs on the earning
of one year of service credit immediately preceding retirement @t or after normal retirement age. For PLD
members, normal retirement age is 60 (65 for new members to the PLD Plan on or after July 1, 2018). The monthly
benefit of members who retire before normal retirement agedy virtue of having at’least 25 years of service credit
is reduced by a statutorily prescribed factor for each yéar, of age that a member is below her/his normal
retirement age at retirement. MPERS also provides disability and death benefits, which are established by contract
under applicable statutory provisions.

Contributions - Employee contribution rates are defined\bydaw or Board rule and depend on the terms of the plan
under which an employee is covered. Employer contributions are determined by actuarial valuations. Employees
are required to contribute 6.95% to 7.70% of their annual, pay. The Airport’s contractually required contribution
rate for the year ended June 30, 2024, was 1020%yof annual payroll, actuarially determined as an amount that,
when combined with employee contributions, is expected to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees
during the year, with an additional'amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. Contributions to the pension
plan from the Airport were $7,053 for the year ended June 30, 2024.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to
Pensions

At June 30, 2024, the Airport reported a liability of $59,690 for its proportionate share of the net pension liability.
The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2023, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net
pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The Airport’s proportion of the net
pension liability was based on a projection of the Airport’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plan
relative to the projected contributions of all participating local districts, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2023,
the Airport’s proportion was 0.0187%.

For the year ended June 30, 2024, the Airport recognized pension expense of $17,032. At June 30, 2024, the
Airport reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the
following sources:

18



AUBURN-LEWISTON MUNICIPAL AIRPORT
Notes to Basic Financial Statements, Continued

NET PENSION LIABILITY, CONTINUED

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources
Differences between expected and
actual experience S 11,081 -
Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on pension plan investments - 10,131
Changes in assumptions - -
Changes in proportion and differences
between Airport contributions and
proportionate share of contributions 3,333 -
Airport contributions subsequent to the
measurement date 7,053 -
Total $21,467 10,131

$7,053 is reported as deferred outflows of resources related, to pensions resulting from Airport contributions
subsequent to the measurement date and will be recognized as a‘reduction of the net pension liability in the year
ended June 30, 2025. Other amounts reported as deférred outflowsiof resources or deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ended June 30:

2025
2026
2027
2028

S7(550)

(5,908)

10,274
467

Actuarial Assumptions - The total pension liability in the June 30, 2023 actuarial valuation was determined using
the following actuarial assumptions,applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Inflation

Salary Increases

Investment return

Cost of living benefit increases

2.75%

2.75%- 11.48%
6.50%

1.91% per annum

Mortality rates were based on the 2010 Public Plan General Benefits-Weighted Healthy Retiree Mortality Table, for
males and females, projected generationally using the RPEC 2020 model.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2023 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience
study for the period July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2020.

19



AUBURN-LEWISTON MUNICIPAL AIRPORT
Notes to Basic Financial Statements, Continued

NET PENSION LIABILITY, CONTINUED

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block method
in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan
investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to
produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target
asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for
each major asset class included in the pension plan’s target asset allocation as of June 30, 2024 are summarized in
the following table:

Target Asset Long-term Expected
Asset Class Allocation Real Rate of Return
Public equities 30.0% 6.0%
US Government 10.0% 2.6%
Private equity 12.5% 7.6%
Real estate 10.0% 5.2%
Infrastructure 10.0% 5.3%
Natural resources 5.0% 5.0%
Traditional credit 5.0% 3.2%
Alternative credit 10:0% 7.4%
Diversifiers 7.5% 5.0%

Discount Rate - The discount rate used to neasure the total pension liability was 6.50%. The projection of cash
flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that.employee contributions will be made at the current
contribution rate and that contributions,from garticipating local districts will be made at contractually required
rates, actuarially determined. Based on these assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected
to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive employees. Therefore,
the long-term expected rate.6f return on pensionyplan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit
payments to determine the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the Airport’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability (Asset) to Changes in the Discount
Rate - The following presents the Airport’s proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) calculated using
the discount rate of 6.50%, as well as what the Airport’s proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset)
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (5.50%) or 1 percentage-point
higher (7.50%) than the current rate:

1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Increase
(5.50%) (6.50%) (7.50%)
Airport’s proportionate share of
the net pension liability (asset) $ 163,555 59,690 (25,990)

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is
available in the separately issued MPERS financial report.

Payables to the Pension Plan - None as of June 30, 2024.

20



AUBURN-LEWISTON MUNICIPAL AIRPORT
Notes to Basic Financial Statements, Continued

RESTATEMENT OF NET POSITION

In fiscal year 2024 the airport determined depreciation expense and related accumulated depreciation were
underreported in fiscal year 2023 by $429,534. As a result of this error, beginning net position and related
accumulated depreciation have been restated as follows:

Net position 6/30/23 as previously reported $ 18,849,748
Additional depreciation expense 429,534
Net position 6/30/23 as restated $18,420,214

21



TC

%016 %LT'88 %0918 %EV'98 %116 %S€'88 %98'00T %9T'€6 %VET6
%L8°'8C %58°09 %8L°00T %68°SL %EE' LY %L6 %1S'T9 %L V- %9C' Ve %V8°'SE
6LV'L8T 165'T8T 8¥T'9ST £v8'S9T LSY'E9T 869921 17T 616'VCT 00%'8TT €5'99T
€TTYS 667°0TT 09%°LST £S8°STT €9€°LL 60€°€9 9LT'SL (£26'3) v95°0Y 06965
%CS€0°0 %97€0°0 %96¢0°0 %L0€0°0 %€8¢0°0 %L020°0 %6810°0 %¥8T0°0 %€ESTO0 %L810°0
ST0C 910¢C L10C 810¢ 6T0¢C 0zoc Teot <o €20 veot

+x51BA [B3S14 0T 3581

ue|d paiepijosuo) walsAs Jusawaunay saskojdw3 algnd aulen
(139ssy) Aujiqer] uoisuad 32N ay3 jo aseys ajeuoiriodold s310da1y Jo ajnpayds

UDaA [pIsIf 4olid 3y Jo SO pauIwIaIdP 24aM DA [DISIL) YID3 JOf Pauasaid spUNOWD Ay 4

(19sse) Anjiger) uoisuad |e101 9y
40 28ejuad.ad e se uoisod 1au Asednply ueld
||o4Aed paianod s11 jo aejuadiad e se (19sse) Ayljiqel|
uolsuad 1au ay3 Jo aJeys aleuollsodoud s Jiodiy
|104Aed pa1an0d s Ju0diy
S (19sse) Anjiger) uoisuad 1au ay) Jo aJeys ajeuoiyodoud s, juodiy
(19sse) Aujiqer| uoisuad 1au ay3 jo uoluodoud s yuodiy

uonewuoyu] Areyusawsalddng pasinbay
140dYIV TVdIDINNIN NOLSIMIT-NYNaNy



[44

%08°L %06'8 %056 %09'6 %00°0T %00°0T % %v1°0T %0201 %CT6
16S'T8T 8¥79ST £8'S9T LSY'E9T 8699 1 1 00v'8TT £¥5'99T 8759/
(£ST'YT) (906°€1) (s62°sT1) (z69°s1) (0£921) ( ) (£19'CT) (tT0'CT) (£869T) (€s0z)
LSTYT 906°€T GS/'ST 769'ST 0L9'TT wea L19'TT 110°CT £86'9T €50°L
ST0C 9102 L102 810¢ 6102 0z0¢ 1202 r441r4 €20C vzoz

+S1e34 (82514 0T 3587

ue|d palepijosuo) walsAs Juawalay saahojdw3 dijgnd aulen
(19ssv) Aujiqery uoisuad 19N — suoianqluo) 1odily Jo 3npayds

||oJAed paianod Jo adejuaduad e se suoiNgLIu0)
||oJAed paianod s,juodiy
(ss20x3) Aduardiyap uonnguiuo)

uoIINQLIIU0d paJinbas Ajjen1oeuod

3y3 0} UOJIB[3J Ul SUOIINGIIIUOD
uoIINQIIIU0D paJinbad Ajjlenioeliuo)

panuniuo) ‘uonew.oju] Azeyuswajddng pasinbay
140dYIV TVdIDINNIN NOLSIMIT-NYNENY



AUBURN-LEWISTON MUNICIPAL AIRPORT
Notes to Required Supplementary Information

Changes of Benefit Terms (Pension) - None

Changes of Assumptions (Pension) - The following are changes in actuarial assumptions used in the most recent valuations:

Fiscal Year 2022 2021 2019 2017 2016 2015 2014
Discount rate 6.50% 6.75% 6.75% 6.88% 7.13% 7.13% 7.25%
Inflation rate 2.75% 2.75% 2.75% 2.75% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50%
Salary increases 2.75%-11.48% 2.75% + merit 2.75-9% 2.75-9% 3.50-9.50% 3.50-9.50% 3.50-9.50%
Cost of living increases 1.91% 1.91% 1.91% 2.20% 2.55% 2.55% 2.55%

Mortality rates:

In 2015, mortality rates were based on the RP2000 Combined Mortality Table projected forward to 2015 using Scale AA. Between 2016 and 2020, mortality
rates were based on the RP2014 Total Data Set Healthy Annuitant Mortality Table. Starting 2021, Mortality rates were based on the 2010 Public Plan General
Benefits-Weighted Healthy Retiree Mortality Table, for males and females, projected generationally using the RPEC 2020 model.

* This schedule is intended to show information for ten years, but only the years in which changes occurred have been displayed. Additional years' information
will be displayed as it becomes available.

23



Exhibit A-1

AUBURN-LEWISTON MUNICIPAL AIRPORT
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position - Budget and Actual
For the year ended June 30, 2024

Variance
positive
Budget Actual (negative)
Operating revenues:
Charges to users:
Rents S 207,500 146,325 (61,175)
Tie-down fees 50,000 74,488 24,488
Landing fees 27,000 28,872 1,872
Fuel sales and flowage fees 674,872 785,037 110,165
Fees - catering - 214 214
Off hour call out 5,625 9,275 3,650
Aircraft maintenance 6,620 5,258 (1,362)
Municipal operating subsidies 410,000 568,801 158,801
Sale of Christian Hill materials 100,000 91,837 (8,163)
Other operating and miscellaneous 17,540 26,161 8,621
Total operating revenues 1,499,157 1,736,268 237,111
Operating expenses:
Salaries 413,591 176,665 236,926
Fringe benefits 159,620 81,875 77,745
Overtime 8,000 6,742 1,258
Advertising 7,700 2,731 4,969
Telephone and internet 5,700 9,803 (4,103)
Insurance 42,700 37,222 5,478
Legal Fees 45,000 14,808 30,192
Professional services 44,800 279,346 (234,546)
Utilities 125,500 92,513 32,987
Snow and ice control 18,000 - 18,000
Building and radio maintenance 24,800 34,790 (9,990)
Electrical maintenance 7,000 7,218 (218)
Vehicle maintenance 17,831 26,249 (8,418)
Airfield maintenance 30,750 13,804 16,946
Pavement maintenance 6,000 45,329 (39,329)
Office machine/computer repairs 20,500 18,705 1,795
Travel and training 6,000 3,161 2,839
Office supplies 4,100 4,353 (253)
Gasoline and oil - motar vehicle supplies 20,000 25,732 (5,732)
Gasoline and oil - for resale 537,500 596,288 (58,788)
Plant equipment 2,065 3,134 (1,069)
Ground support equipment 16,000 24,665 (8,665)
Total operating expenses 1,563,157 1,505,133 58,024
Operating gain (loss) (64,000) 231,135 295,135
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Gain on sale of property 75,000 340,462 265,462
Interest and property tax expense (12,000) - 12,000
Airport interest 1,000 17,859 16,859
Excise tax - 24,045 24,045
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 64,000 382,366 318,366
Change in net position - 613,501 613,501
Items not part of operating budget:
Depreciation (1,268,264)
Capital grants and subsidy 134,684
Change in Net Pension Liability and related deferred inflows and outflows (17,032)
Adjustment to account for leases under GASB 87 23,812
Miscellaneous repairs and maintenance (171,203)
Change in net position, June 30, 2024 S (684,502)

24



AUBURN-LEWISTON MUNICIPAL AIRPORT

Combining Statement of Net Position

Exhibit A-2

June 30, 2024
Airport Airport
Operations Land Fund Total
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents S 463,294 761,416 1,224,710
Accounts receivable 204,454 - 204,454
Grants receivable 114,714 - 114,714
Lease receivable 1,609,982 - 1,609,982
Inventory for resale 97,961 - 97,961
Prepaid expenses 12,719 - 12,719
Interfund receivable 454,582 - 454,582
Total current assets 2,957,706 761,416 3,719,122
Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets:
Land 1,717,208 - 1,717,208
Construction-in-progress 169,104 - 169,104
Land improvements 284889,145 - 28,889,145
Buildings 4,512,923 - 4,512,923
Equipment and vehicles 1,746,984 - 1,746,984
Less accumulated depreciation (29,557,513) - (19,557,513)
Net capital assets 17,477,851 - 17,477,851
Total assets 20,435,557 761,416 21,196,973
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows of resources related to pefsions 21,467 - 21,467
Total deferred outflows_of resources 21,467 - 21,467
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and aecrued payroll 168,749 - 168,749
Deferred income 1,530 - 1,530
Interfund payable - 454,582 454,582
Accrued interest 20,426 - 20,426
Current portion of notes payable 84,064 - 84,064
Total current liabilities 274,769 454,582 729,351
Noncurrent liabilities:
Net pension liability 59,690 - 59,690
Notes payable, excluding current portion 1,114,999 - 1,114,999
Accrued compensated absences 23,503 - 23,503
Total noncurrent liabilities 1,198,192 - 1,198,192
Total liabilities 1,472,961 454,582 1,927,543
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions 10,131 - 10,131
Deferred inflows of resources related to leases 1,545,054 - 1,545,054
Total deferred inflows of resources 1,555,185 - 1,555,185
NET POSITION:
Net investment in capital assets 16,278,788 - 16,278,788
Unrestricted 1,150,090 306,834 1,456,924
Total net position S 17,428,878 306,834 17,735,712

25



AUBURN-LEWISTON MUNICIPAL AIRPORT
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
For the year ended June 30, 2024

Exhibit A-3

Airport Airport
Operations Land Fund Total
Operating revenues:
Charges to users:
Rents 112,099 - 112,099
Tie-down fees 74,488 - 74,488
Landing fees 28,872 - 28,872
Fuel sales 785,037 - 785,037
Fees - catering 214 - 214
Off hour call out 9,275 - 9,275
Aircraft maintenance 5,258 - 5,258
Municipal operating subsidies 568,801 - 568,801
Sale of Christian Hill materials 91,837 - 91,837
Other operating and miscellaneous 26,161 - 26,161
Total operating revenues 1,702,042 - 1,702,042
Operating expenses:
Salaries 176,665 - 176,665
Fringe benefits 81,875 - 81,875
Overtime 6,742 - 6,742
Advertising 2,731 - 2,731
Telephone and internet 9,803 - 9,803
Insurance 37,222 - 37,222
Legal fees 14,808 - 14,808
Professional services 279,346 - 279,346
Utilities 92,513 - 92,513
Building and radio maintenance 34,790 - 34,790
Electrical maintenance 7,218 - 7,218
Vehicle maintenance 26,249 - 26,249
Airfield maintenance 13,804 - 13,804
Pavement Maintenance 45,329 - 45,329
Office machine/computer repairs 18,705 - 18,705
Travel and training 3,161 - 3,161
Office supplies 4,353 - 4,353
Gasoline and oil - motor vehicle supplies 25,732 - 25,732
Gasoline and oil - for résale 596,288 - 596,288
Plant equipment 3,134 - 3,134
Ground support‘equipment 24,665 - 24,665
Miscellaneous repairs and maintenance 171,203 - 171,203
Depreciation 1,268,264 - 1,268,264
Total operating expehses 2,944,600 - 2,944,600
Operating gain (loss) (1,242,558) - (1,242,558)
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Interest revenue 69,159 6,738 75,897
Capital grants and subsidy 134,684 - 134,684
Gain on sale of assets 340,462 - 340,462
Excise tax - 24,045 24,045
Amortization of change in net pension liability (17,032) - (17,032)
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 527,273 30,783 558,056
Gain (loss) before transfers (715,285) 30,783 (684,502)
Transfers in - 46,200 46,200
Transfers out (46,200) - (46,200)
Total transfers (46,200) 46,200 -
Change in net position (761,485) 76,983 (684,502)
Net position, beginning of year, as previously reported 18,619,897 229,851 18,849,748
Correction of an error (429,534) - (429,534)
Net position, beginning of year, as restated 18,190,363 229,851 18,420,214
Net position, end of year 17,428,878 306,834 17,735,712

26



AUBURN-LEWISTON MUNICIPAL AIRPORT

Reports Required by
Government Auditing Standards

For the Year Ended June 30, 2024



RKO

RUI‘IyDﬂ Kersteen Ouellette Certified Public Accountants and Business Consultants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Trustees
Auburn Lewiston Municipal Airport

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally@accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits containeddin Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Auburn Lewiston
Municipal Airport, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024, and the,related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the Auburn Lewiston Municipal Airport’s basic financial
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the ‘financial statements, we considered Auburn Lewiston
Municipal Airport’s internal control over financial reportings(internal control) as a basis for designing
audit procedures that are appropriate in.the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on
the financial statements, but not fer the ‘purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
Auburn Lewiston Municipal Airpost’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Auburn Lewiston Municipal Airport’s’internal control.

A deficiency in internal control ‘existsiwhen the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employées, in the normal‘course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatementsion a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies,lin internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may
exist that were not identified. We identified a certain deficiency in internal control described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2024-001 that we consider to be a
material weakness.



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS, CONTINUED

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Auburn Lewiston Municipal Airport’s financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have
a direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Auburn Lewiston Municipal Airport’s Response to Finding

Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perfofm limited precedures on Auburn Lewiston
Municipal Airport’s response to the finding identified in_our audit and described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs. Auburn dewiston/Municipal Airport’s response was not
subjected to the other auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and,
accordingly, we express no opinion on the response.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solelysto describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of thatstesting,/and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control or on cémpliance. «This .report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

South Portland, Maine



AUBURN-LEWISTON MUNICIPAL AIRPORT
Schedule of Findings and Responses

Section Il - Findings Required to be Reported Under Government Auditing Standards
MATERIAL WEAKNESS

2024-001 Routine Reconciliations

Criteria: To ensure accurate financial reporting, reconciliations of general ledger accounts should be done on a
regular basis, ideally monthly.

Statement of Condition: During our testing of year-end balances, we identified certain accounts for which no
reconciliation was performed, or the supporting detail did not agree with the general ledger.

Cause: The Airport does not have adequate procedures in place to reconcile grant activity on a regular basis, or
post all necessary year end adjustments.

Effect: Year-end adjusting journal entries were required to record activity in.the proper period. Audit entries
were proposed to correct ending balances in grant regéivables,qcapital assets, inventory, and accounts
receivable.

Recommendation: It is our recommendation that¢allisignificant'balance sheet accounts are reconciled on a
monthly basis.

Management’s response/corrective _action’plan:The Auburn Lewiston Airport Financial Administrator (City of
Auburn Deputy Finance Director) will befreconciling the accounts receivable every month going forward to ensure
they are in balance before the financial, repoftstarergiven to the Airport Board for the monthly meeting. The
Auburn Lewiston Airport Director (City“of Auburn Transportation Systems Director) will ensure that this is
completed for bi-month end and willxreviewnthe accounts receivable for accuracy. Accounts payable for all
invoices will be charged in_the correct fiscal year going forward. All invoices will be reviewed in July and August
by the Auburn Lewiston Airport Financial Administrator and the Auburn Lewiston Airport Director. Once both
review to ensure what fiscal ‘year the invoices are for and write it on the top of the invoice, the Financial
Administrator will ensure that it is.appropriately entered into the financial software for that fiscal year that the
work was done.

OTHER COMMENTS

Cash receipts procedures

During our audit, we reviewed a sample of 40 cash receipt transactions and noted that 7 items lacked proper
coding. Accurate coding is essential for ensuring that transactions are recorded in the correct accounts and
financial reports are reliable. The absence of proper coding increases the risk of misstatements and may hinder
effective financial analysis and decision-making. Additionally, of the 12 monthly bank reconciliations reviewed, 3
were not formally approved. Timely review and approval of bank reconciliations are critical internal controls that
help detect errors or irregularities in cash balances and ensure the integrity of financial records. We recommend
management reinforce the importance of proper coding for all cash receipts and implement a review process to
ensure compliance. Furthermore, we suggest establishing a formal approval protocol for bank reconciliations,
including documentation of the review and sign-off by an appropriate level of management. These steps will
strengthen internal controls and enhance the reliability of financial reporting.

3



AUBURN-LEWISTON MUNICIPAL AIRPORT
Schedule of Findings and Responses

Section Il - Findings Required to be Reported Under Government Auditing Standards, continued

Management’s response/corrective action plan: The Airport Director will code all cash transactions, based on the
chart of accounts for the Airport, and deliver those to the Airport Financial Administrator (City of Auburn Deputy
Finance Director) for entering and deposit. A proof of the deposit from MUNIS, with the coding and amounts for
the transactions, will be sent for review and sign-off to the Airport Director to ensure accuracy. Monthly bank
reconciliations will be completed by the Financial Administrator and provided to the Airport Director for review

and sign-off prior to the close of the following month. The signed reconciliations will be returned to the Financial
Administrator for filing.




Auburn - Lewiston Municipal Airport
Board Meeting Information Sheet

Board Workshop or Meeting Date: November 19, 2025
Author: Jonathan P. LaBonte, Airport Director
Subject: Board Meeting Public Comment Policy

Information: The Airport Board of Directors requested at the September meeting a final version of a public
comment policy for board meetings to be brought forward for action. The included policy mirrors what was
discussed earlier in 2025 at a board meeting.

Recommended Action: Adoption of the Public Comment Policy

Previous Meetings and History:

Attachments:

Page 1 of 1



Auburn Lewiston Municipal Airport — Board of Directors Meeting Public Comment Policy

The Board of Directors follows the framework for public comment detailed in state law
(https://www.mainelegislature.org/legis/statutes/1/title1sec403.html)

8403. Meetings to be open to public; record of meetings

1. Proceedings open to public. Except as otherwise provided by statute or by section
405, all public proceedings must be open to the public and any person must be

permitted to attend a public proceeding.

As excerpted from the State of Maine’s Freedom of Access Act FAQ website
(https://www.maine.gov/foaa/fag/index.shtml)

Do members of the public have a right to speak at public meetings under the Freedom
of Access Act?

The FOAA does not require that an opportunity for public participation be provided at open
meetings. However, public participation may be permitted or required in certain
circumstances for constitutional reasons or under various statutes, local ordinances or
policies. An individual should determine the type of public meeting and consult sources of
authority outside the FOAA for information about participation rights.

The Airport Board of Directors explicitly allows for members of the public to comment
during “Public Comment” — as described on the Airport Board Agendas, though thatis nota
legal requirement. Unless itis a public hearing as defined under state or federal
regulations, any opportunities for public comment are extended as a courtesy, and are not
required.

As modeled by both Cities/Airport Sponsors, the Airport Board of Directors, through the
Chair, may allow for one comment period after a motion has been made and seconded and
before it begins its deliberation and subsequent votes. The Chair, at their discretion, may
limit the time period for general public comment periods or for public comment on Board
motions.


https://www.mainelegislature.org/legis/statutes/1/title1sec403.html
https://www.mainelegislature.org/legis/statutes/1/title1sec405.html
https://www.mainelegislature.org/legis/statutes/1/title1sec405.html
https://www.maine.gov/foaa/faq/index.shtml

Auburn - Lewiston Municipal Airport
Board Meeting Information Sheet

Board Workshop or Meeting Date: November 19, 2025
Author: Jonathan P. LaBonte, Board Chair
Subject: Waiving the Right of First Refusal for 80 Kittyhawk Avenue

Information: The property at Tax Map 143, Lot 002 was part of the original Airport Industrial Airpark
subdivision. As such, it is subject to the original covenant established and permanently associated with the
deeds to those properties.

The Airport has been given an opportunity to purchase the property. Given that it’s location would serve no
long-term Airport need (as evaluated at this time), it is recommended that the Airport waive its right of first
refusal.

Airport Financial Impacts: N/A

Recommended Action: Approve order waiving the right of first refusal and authorize the Airport Director to
execute

Previous Meetings and History:

Attachments:

Property Map

Purchase and Sale Agreement
Affidavit Waiving Right of First Refusal

Page 1 of 1



ArcGIS Web Map

/4

fen) ", (R,

11/2/2023, 5:14:15 PM

Current Parcels _ Public

" Wetlands

1:9,028
0 0.05 0.1 0.2 mi
| | 1 1 | 1 1 1 |
I T T T T T T T T
0 0.07 0.15 0.3 km

Esri Community Maps Contributors, © OpenStreetMap, Microsoft, Esri,
HERE, Garmin, SafeGraph, GeoTechnologies, Inc, METI/NASA, USGS, EPA,

Web AppBuilder for ArcGIS

Credit should always be given to the data source and/or originator when the data is transferred or printed. | Esri Community Maps Contributors, © OpenStreetMap, Microsoft, Esri, HERE, Garmin, SafeGraph, GeoTechnologies, Inc, METI/NASA, USGS, EPA, NPS, US




Auburn — Lewiston Municipal Airport
Board Meeting Information Sheet

Board Workshop or Meeting Date: November 19, 2025
Author: Jonathan P. LaBonte, Airport Director

Subject: Tailfin Aviation LLC Commercial Operating Rights Agreement (Flight Training and Aircraft Rental)

Information: Tailfin Aviation LLC, a new company owned by Michael Gaines, has applied under the Airport’s
Minimum Standards for FBO Category Il (Flight Training) and FBO Category V (Aircraft Rentals). For each
category, their application has demonstrated that they can meet the minimum standards for leasehold,
personnel, hours, and equipment.

To achieve the leasehold requirements of at least 725 square feet, Tailfin Aviation has negotiated a sublease
agreement with Dirigo Aerospace Solutions LLC in Hangar #2 (Blue Hangar). The sublease area still ensures
Dirigo meets its space requirement as an FBO Category VI (Airframe and power plant repair facilities) Our
existing lease with Dirigo Aerospace Solutions requires Airport consent for any sublease of space in Hangar #2,
so that consent is part of the recommended action.

Given that the Airport has very limited, if any, space to rent to attract or grow commercial tenants, this new
flight training and aircraft rental business subleasing space from another Airport tenant is a creative solution
and a win.

For the Operating Rights Agreement, it is recommended that we continue our current practice of charging a
commercial activity fee of $50/month for each FBO category. This would generate an additional $1,200 per
year.

Airport Financial Impacts: $1,200 in new Commercial Activity Fee Income (and indirectly a projected increase
in 100LL Fuel Sales)

Recommended Action: Authorize the execution of an Operating Rights Agreement for FBO Category Il and V
with Tailfin Aviation, and consent to the sublease of space by Dirigo Aerospace Solutions in Hangar #2.

Previous Meetings and History:

Attachments:

Page 1 of 1



	Binder1.pdf
	251119 DRAFT Airport Agenda
	I. Consent Items
	II. Minutes
	VI. Old Business –

	250910 DRAFT Airport Minutes
	I. Workshop
	1. Presentation of the FY2024 Audit by RKO
	II. Consent Items
	III. Minutes – On a motion by D. Chittim and a second by M. Garside, both minutes were accepted by a vote of 5-0.  Clarification was made on the date of the July 9th meeting in the minutes.
	VII. Old Business - None

	2510 Balance Sheet
	Fuel Sales Comparison FY26Q1
	AL Air Draft SAS
	AL Air Draft FS
	AL Air Draft GAS
	251119 Board Public Comment Policy Info Sheet
	Airport Board Public Comment Policy
	251119 80 Kittyhawk Ave ROFR Info Sheet
	80 Kittyhawk Parcel
	251119 Tailfin Aviation LLC Operating Rights Agreement

	2510 YTD Rev Exp Report



